
Page 1 of 3 

 

           

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

  
  

  

CCoommmmiitttteeee  ooff  tthhee  WWhhoollee  ––  66::3300  pp..mm..    

RReegguullaarr  CCiittyy  CCoouunncciill  MMeeeettiinngg  ––  77::0000  pp..mm..  
 

  

  MMAAYYOORR  
Bryce Ward 888-4444  

 

  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  MMEEMMBBEERRSS               
Michael Welch-  Mayor Pro Tem    488-5834  

Sharron Hunter-  Dep Mayor Pro Tem  488-4282 

Elizabeth Holm – Alt Dep Mayor Pro Tem    385-3797   

Kevin McCarthy-     590-0800                

Thomas McGhee-               455-0010 

Preston Smith -     488-8824 

   

 CCIITTYY  CCLLEERRKK 

        Kathy Weber, MMC  488-8583   

 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 

  

2. Pledge of Allegiance to the US Flag   
National Anthem sung by NPMS – Shahiba Bhattarai, Lindsay Moisan, Ashley Roberts, Brittany Roberts 

 

3. Invocation   
  

4. Approval of the Agenda 

 

5. Approval of the Minutes  

CCIITTYY  OOFF  NNOORRTTHH  PPOOLLEE  

AAllaasskkaa  
 

 

RREEGGUULLAARR  CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  MMEEEETTIINNGG  

MMoonnddaayy,,  NNoovveemmbbeerr  2255,,  22001133  
 

 

  

  

  

  

1



Page 2 of 3 

 

  

6. Communications from the Mayor 

 

 

7.      Council Member Questions of the Mayor 

 

8.      Communications from Department Heads, Borough Representative and the City 

         Clerk  

   

9.      Ongoing Projects Report 
 

10.    Citizens Comments (Limited to Five (5) minutes per Citizen) 

 

11.    Old Business 

a. Ordinance 13-14, An Ordinance Establishing the 2014 Budget and Levying the Mill Rate, second 

reading 

 

12.   New Business 

a. Award 2013 Audit RFP to Kohler, Schmitt & Hutchinson and the possibility to extend for 

another 5 years 

 

b. Request from Christmas in Ice for 3
rd

 Quarter 2013 bed tax monies 

 

c. Request from FCVB for 4
th

 Quarter 2012, and 1
st
, 2

nd
, and 3

rd
 Quarter 2013 Bed Tax Monies 

 

d. Request from PDC Inc, Engineering for modification to Professional Services Agreement 

 

e. Approval of Mutual Aid Agreement for Fire Protection Services 

 

f. Approval of Emergency Medical Services Mutual Aid Agreement between the Fairbanks North 

Star Borough and its EMS contractors, and adjacent entities providing like services 

 

g. Ordinance 13-15, An Ordinance Amending Title 4, Chapter 4.09, Section 4.09.020, Tax Levy 

 

h. Ordinance 13-16, An Ordinance of the City of North Pole, Alaska to Amend Title 13, Public 

Services 

 

i. Resolution 13-18, A Resolution of The City of North Pole to Formally accept Alaska Clean 

Water Fund Loan #633031 from the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation in the 

amount of $302,500 for the Utility Emergency Response Generators Project 

 

j. Resolution 13-19, A Resolution in support of the Fairbanks Metropolitan Area Transportation 

System (FMATS) request for transportation funding for fiscal year 2015 

 

 

13.  Executive Session 

2



Page 3 of 3 

 

 Discussion of statute of limitations concerning sulfolane contamination and City's options 

concerning legal options related to Flint Hills Resources 

 

 

14.  Council Comments 

 

15.    Adjournment 

 

The City of North Pole will provide an interpreter at City Council meetings for hearing impaired 

individuals.  The City does require at least 48 hours notice to arrange for this service.  All such requests are 

subject to the availability of an interpreter.  All City Council meetings are recorded on CD.  These CD’s are 

available for listening or duplication at the City Clerk’s Office during regular business hours, Monday 

through Friday, 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. or can be purchased for $5.00 per CD. The City Clerk’s Office is 

located in City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska.  

3



Regular City Council Meeting 

November 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

1 
November 4, 2013 

 

 

 

Committee of the Whole – 6:30 P.M. 

      Regular City Council Meeting – 7:00 P.M. 

 

A regular meeting of the North Pole City Council was held on Monday, November 4, 2013 in the 

Council Chambers of City Hall, 125 Snowman Lane, North Pole, Alaska. 

 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Mayor Ward called the regular City Council meeting of Monday, November 4, 2013 to order at 

7:00 p.m. 

 

There were present:     Absent/Excused 

Ms. Holm       

Ms. Hunter  

Mr. McCarthy          

Mr. McGhee       

Mr. Smith 

Mr. Welch         

Mayor Ward  

     

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE U.S. FLAG 

Led by Mayor Ward 

 

National Anthem sung by NPMS students, Lindsay Moisan, Ashley Roberts, Brittany Roberts, 

Shahiba Bhattarai, and Katie White 

 

INVOCATION  
Invocation was given by Councilman McGhee 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve the Agenda of November 4, 2013 

 

Seconded by Mr. Welch 

 

Discussion  

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to consent the following items under New Business as follows: 

c. Acceptance of AHSO Grant 154AL-14-01(C) in the amount of $119,326.39 

d. Award of design services for heating and cooling system in the Police 

Department to PDC, Inc. 

e. Award of Bi-Directional Amplifier (BDA) & Distributed Antenna (DAS) bid to 

Procomm and authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the Agreement for 

Professional Services. 

f. Council approval of online surplus sale items 

4



Regular City Council Meeting 

November 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

2 
November 4, 2013 

h.  Resolution 13-17, a Resolution of the North Pole City Council, rescheduling 

the November 18, 2013 council meeting to November 25, 2013 due to the AML 

Conference in Anchorage, Alaska 

 

Seconded by Mr. Welch 

 

Discussion 

None 

 

On the Amendment 

 

PASSED 

YES – 7 –Hunter, Smith, Holm, McGhee, Welch, McCarthy, Ward 

NO – 0 

Absent – 0  

 

On the main motion as amended 

 

PASSED 

YES – 7 –Hunter, Smith, Holm, McGhee, Welch, McCarthy, Ward 

NO – 0 

Absent – 0 

 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve the minutes of October 21, 2013 

 

Seconded by Ms. Hunter 

 

Discussion   

None 

 

PASSED 

YES – 7 –Hunter, Smith, Holm, McGhee, Welch, McCarthy, Ward  

NO – 0 

Absent – 0 

 

Executive Session 

 

To Discuss personnel issues of the Police Department 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to Approve the step advance for the Police Department personnel, 

Bruce Milne 

 

Seconded by Mr. Welch 

 

PASSED 

5



Regular City Council Meeting 

November 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

3 
November 4, 2013 

YES – 7 –Hunter, Smith, Holm, McGhee, Welch, McCarthy, Ward  

NO – 0 

Absent – 0 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM THE MAYOR 

 

 United Way Presentation by Karen Gardner 

 Re-organization of council 

Mayor Pro Tem – Michael Welch 

Deputy Mayor Pro Tem – Sharron Hunter 

Alternate Mayor Pro Tem – Elizabeth Holm 

 

The North Pole City budget was made public on the 29
th

 of October.  It is available for review 

online at our website, www.northpolealaska.com and at City Hall.   

 

Thank you to the council members who attended the council orientation this last weekend.  It 

was a great success and a special thank s to our staff that made it all happen.   

 

Every third Friday of the month is Muffins with the Mayor.  That means next Friday is Muffins 

with the Mayor from 8-10 AM here at City Hall.  This is a time for the public to come and chat 

with the mayor, ask questions and solve the world’s problems.  Muffins are homemade by 

Rachel Ward.   

 

The proposed amendments for the 2013 budget will be presented in the December 2
nd

 council 

meeting.   

 

Please mark your calendars for budget work sessions next week, the dates and times are as 

follows: 

  

Tuesday November 12
th

 at 6PM, Bill Butler: Utility Dept., Public Works and Building Dept.  

  

Wednesday November 13
th

 at 6PM Chief Dutra: Police, Mayor Ward: Revenues 

  

Thursday November 14
th

 at 6PM  Chief Lane: Fire, Kathy Weber: Admin- Clerks office  

 

 

COUNCIL MEMBER QUESTIONS OF THE MAYOR 

None     

 

COMMUNICATIONS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS, BOROUGH 

REPRESENTATIVE AND THE CITY CLERK 

 

Director of City Services, Bill Butler  

Building Department 

6

http://www.northpolealaska.com/


Regular City Council Meeting 

November 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

4 
November 4, 2013 

 No new building permit applications since last council meeting 

 

 

Public Works 

 Christmas light displays installed in roundabouts and banners hung on 5
th

 Avenue 

 Working with DOT to correct electrical problem in one roundabout 

 Major department activities include preparing equipment—plows, skid steers loaders, etc. 

for winter work 

 

Utility Department 

 Loss of flow to discharge channel in Tanana River where utility discharges treated waste 

water effluent 

 Working with ADEC to hold a planning meeting to begin resolving issue 

 Purpose of meeting is to focus on most realist and economical solutions 

 Tentative meeting participants 

Dean Syta: City’s engineer from USKH responsible for wastewater treatment 

rehabilitation analysis and design project 

Mike Pollen: City’s wastewater consultant 

ADEC representatives from permitting, engineering plan reviewer, contaminated 

sites and grants administrator 

Department of Natural Resources representative 

 

Natural Gas Utility Board 

 IGU received and is reviewing proposals from firms to serve as a project manager—

professional staff--to move forward creating a public utility if RCA grants the service area to 

IGU 

 IUG’s volunteer board members have been performing these functions, but workload has 

reached the point where need fulltime staff to move forward 

 Goal is to identify a project manager to coincide with granting of service area 

 

 

Police Department, Chief Dutra 

 

 Stats through October 31
st
. 

 Just a reminder to the council about Nov 7th at 1300 hours graduation for Officer Milne 

at Pioneer Park. 

 Drug Take back was a great success we had 23.05 lbs of drugs turned in. 

 Halloween was a success we had no major problems and Glow Stick handout was fast we 

handed out 500 glow sticks in 1 and half hours.  Warm weather brought out lots of kids.  

Received lots of compliments about extra officers and safety in the City. 

 Attention to article in Daily News Miner:  congratulations to Det. Stewart for his work on 

this case. 

7



Regular City Council Meeting 

November 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

5 
November 4, 2013 

  Thank you Kathy Weber and Mayor Ward for your hard work on the budget packets and 

the city council orientation. 

 

 

 

Fire Department, Chief Lane 

Lt. Kevin Haywood 

 NPFD participated in a structural fire this afternoon.  There was no loss of life but the 

building was a complete loss. 

 

Accountant, Lisa Vaughn 

 Financial statements, for the general and utility funds, as of today, to help with your 

budget decisions.  If you have any questions on the budget, please feel free to call me.   

 I’m sorry I was not part of the presentations on Saturday. I have another commitment on 

Saturdays that I try not to break.  I will, starting our next council meeting, be  giving a 

couple of short presentations on the financial statements and the things I do in finance. 

 I will not be at the budget meetings next week, as I have classes all three of those nights. 

 Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions. 

 

 

 

Borough Representative, Mayor Ward 

 There was nothing that concerned the City of North Pole. 

 

 

City Clerk    
 

 I would like to start off by saying it is great to have a full council again and I look forward to 

working with all of you. 

 The past two weeks have been spent on putting the budget together and Council Orientation.  I 

hope everyone enjoyed Saturday.  We are looking for feedback from each of you and will put out 

a survey to each of the council members so you can reply with suggestions for next year or what 

you would like to see more or less of.   

 

 Five Council members and the City Clerk will be attending AML from November 17 - 21.  I will 

have access to email and will be checking it throughout the conference.  If you have any 

questions or concerns during the conference and need me for anything, please feel free to call or 

email me. 

 

  Reminder that all council members have professional portraits taken as they hang above the front 

counter in City Hall.  The City pays for this service and you should have received information on  

“Professional Portraits”.  New pictures frames are being ordered along with new name plates. 

 

 We are looking at a new company, Lincoln Financial, for the deferred compensation for 

employees.  This is a benefit that employees can participate on their own.  I met with them last 

week and they are very interested in working with the City of North Pole. 

 

8



Regular City Council Meeting 

November 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

6 
November 4, 2013 

 I hope to have something to bring to you at the next meeting concerning your electronic device.  

Ipads are an easy thing to adapt to and to carry around.  However, while in Anchorage, the Mayor 

and I will be going to Best Buy and I will be speaking with other IT people to get you the best 

product that I can for the money. 

 

 

Here is a breakdown of the dates until the end of the year for budgeting and workshops. 

 

1. November 4, 2013 – 1
st
 reading of the 2014 budget 

 

2. November 12 – Budget Workshop for Utility, Public Works, and Building 

Departments  

 

3. November 13 – Budget Workshop for Police Department, Revenues 

 

4. November 14 – Budget Workshop for Admin, Professional Services, and Fire 

Department  

 

5. All Budget Work Shops begin promptly at 6:00 p.m. 

 

6. November 25, 2013 – 2
nd

 reading of the 2014 NP Budget 

 

7. December 2, 2013 – 3
rd

 and final reading of the 2014 NP Budget 
 

 

ONGOING PROJECTS 
None 

 

CITIZENS COMMENTS 
None 

 

OLD BUSINESS 
None 

 

NEW BUSINESS 
 

TUITION REIMBURSEMENT FOR OFFICER EMILY GIBSON IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$495 

Chief Dutra stated that he approved this in his budget and this course is needed for Officer 

Gibson’s degree. 

 

Public Comment 

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to Approved Tuition Reimbursement For Officer Emily Gibson In The 

Amount Of $495 

 

9



Regular City Council Meeting 

November 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

7 
November 4, 2013 

Seconded by Mr. Welch 

 

 

 

Discussion 

Ms. Hunter said she is did not think that any class that an employee took should be paid for by 

the City and that only classes that directly pertained to their career should be approved. 

She will vote on this based on the fact that Officer Gibson is changing her major. 

 

Mr. McGhee said he too did not think that the comment by Chief Dutra stating that any class 

taken would be good for the department.  He said this could be abused and this is not an open 

carte blanche to approve any class.   

 

PASSED 

YES – 7 –Hunter, Smith, Holm, McGhee, McCarthy, Welch, Ward 

NO – 0 

Absent – 0 

 

 

 

APPEAL OF WATER BILL FOR SEPTEMBER & OCTOBER 2013 BY JAMES VOGEL 

Mr. Butler stated that Mr. Vogel asked to be partially reimbursed for his water bill as his water 

softener was not working properly.  The water was used because of a faulty piece of equipment. 

 

Ms. Hunter asked if the customer was given a written excerpt from the code. 

 

Mr. Butler said they are referred to the NPMC that is online 

 

Public Comment 

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to Deny the Appeal of Water Bill for September & October 2013 by 

James Vogel 

 

Seconded by Ms. Holm 

 

Discussion 

Mr. McGhee said that the water was used because of faulty equipment and the other rate payers 

shouldn’t have to pay for the used water. 

 

Mayor Ward said that the City has set precedence. 

  

PASSED 

YES – 7 –Hunter, Smith, Holm, McGhee, McCarthy, Welch, Ward 

NO – 0 

Absent – 0 

 

10



Regular City Council Meeting 

November 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

8 
November 4, 2013 

 

 

 

ORDINANCE 13-14, AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE 2014 BUDGET AND 

LEVYING THE MILL RATE 

Mayor Ward introduced the 2014 Budget and Ms. Vaughn went through the booklet and 

informed council on the sections in the budget. 

 

Public Comment 

None 

 

Mr. McGhee moved to Introduce and Advance Ordinance 13-14, An Ordinance 

Establishing The 2014 Budget And Levying The Mill Rate 

 

Seconded by Ms. Hunter 

 

Discussion 

Mr. McGhee said he has been sitting on the council since 1998 and this is the first time he has 

seen the budget prior to the budget process.  He asked the Mayor about the .5 mill rate and the 

amount in the 2014 budget. 

 

Mayor Ward said that this was in part because of the decrease in property tax from Flint Hills 

Resources. 

 

Mr. McGhee said he is concerned about the decrease in citation revenue.  He asked if the Mayor 

felt good about the number in the impound lot and if they were under staffed or what the problem 

was.   

 

Chief Dutra explained that this past year the department was under staffed and he is confident 

that this was the problem.  This pulls officers off of the traffic and there was just not enough 

people on the road.  He expects this to change this next year as they are fully staffed now. 

Currently the staff is giving more warnings that citations and he feels that his officers use good 

discretion and judgment.   

 

Mr. McGhee said the Fairbanks Police Department got a bad reputation as their Chief wanted 

them to make more contacts and give citations.  He hasn’t seen the police patrolling in the City 

limits very much lately. 

 

Mr.  McCarthy asked about line item 18. 

 

Mayor Ward said that municipal assistance that this is something that the state legislature sets.  

The legislature did not approve the municipal assistance last year and with things looking tighter 

this next year for the state, he did not feel comfortable relying on that revenue stream. 

 

Mr. McGhee asked Chief Dutra about refilling positions in the department for 2014 and about 

equipment outlay. 

 

11



Regular City Council Meeting 

November 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

9 
November 4, 2013 

Chief Dutra stated that this was for radio’s and other equipment and not a vehicle. 

 

 

PASSED 

YES – 7 –Hunter, Smith, Holm, McGhee, McCarthy, Welch, Ward 

NO – 0 

Absent – 0 

 

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 

 

Mr. McCarthy – no comment 

 

Mr. Welch –  no comment 

 

Ms. Holm –  excited to be on council for the next 3 years. 

 

Ms. Hunter – enjoyed the orientation despite the fact she’s been on council in the past.  She 

thanked everyone for coming out and is grateful that we have a full council again. 

 

Mr. Smith – thanked the departments for the great orientation and he looks forward to working 

on the budget the next few weeks.  He asked that everyone drive safely. 

 

Mr. McGhee – congratulated the new council members and those that have come back.  He 

really appreciated the budget booklet and can’t agree with a budget he hasn’t’ had a chance to 

talk with department heads about.  He also appreciated the United Way presentation and all 

employees that participate in the project.  The new vests are very nice and he is looking forward 

to the new council and glad that Mike Welch is the Mayor Pro Tem and publicly representing the 

City.  Mr. McGhee said he remembered when Mr. Welch presented the airmen on Eielson Air 

Force base with a coin and Alaska flag who were going to be deployed to Afghanistan.  He also 

noticed Ms. Hunter who has done an excellent job representing the City.  He told the other 

council member that for anyone taking this on, you represent the City as well as standing in for 

the Mayor.  Mr. McGhee thanked the Mayor for what he has done. 

 

Mayor Ward – gave special thanks to all the staff who came out and helped and the council 

members who attended.  He wants them to be most educated council on things going on locally 

and around the state.  Muffins with the Mayor is a good time to come and talk and that is held on 

the 3
rd

 Friday of every month. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

Mr. McGhee adjourned the meeting at 9:17 p.m.  

 

Seconded by Ms. Holm 

 

The regular meeting of November 4, 2013 adjourned at 9:17 p.m. 

12



Regular City Council Meeting 

November 4, 2013 

7:00 p.m. 

10 
November 4, 2013 

 

These minutes passed and approved by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 

Council on Monday, November 25, 2013. 

  

      ____________________________________ 

      Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

 

ATTEST:  

                                   

 

_________________________________________ 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 

North Pole City Clerk 

13



PROCLAMATION

A DECLARATION OF A DISASTER EMERGENCY
\ryITHIN THE FAIRBANKS NORTH STAR BOROUGH

AND REQUESTING STATE AND FEDERAL ASSISTANCE.

WHEREAS, on or about November 12, 2073, a severe winter storm occurred in the
Fairbanks North Star Borough area; and

V/HEREAS, the Fairbanks Nofh Star Borough (FNSB) area received substantial and
heavy precipitation in the form of freezing rains, rvet snow and up to 70 mph winds resulting in a
large number of downed trees damaging power lines and creating extensive and long lasting
power and phone outages; and

WHEREAS, the conditions which have brought about this disaster emergency resulted in
power outages to an estimated 16,000 residences initially; and

V/HEREAS, subsequently. a cold weather front settled in the Tanana Valley and the area
is expected to experience tenrperatures dropping to well below zero; and

WHEREAS, the FNSB has established close communication with Golden Valley Electric
Association (GVEA), the American Red Cross and the School District to establish the necessary
response to the continuing emergency which the area is experiencing; and

WHEREAS, GVEA the local electric cooperative continues to have line crews working
24 hours a day and has asked for and received mutual aid from other utilities statev/ide and yet
anticipates povver outages to continue in areas for several more days; and

WHEREAS schools were forced to close for three days during the freezing rain storm
and there is at least one outlying school which is within an area still without power. In order to
open the school to the children of the area, some from homes without heat, water and power, the
school, which has a back-up generator, has requested satellite phones due to the continued phone
outages so that safety communication can be available while classes are in session; and

V/HEREAS there is a severe lack of communicatiorr to those residents still without pov/er
to determine individual assistance; and

WHEREAS, the weather conditions within the Fairbanks North Star Borough have
resulted in actual threats to life and further damage to property; and

WHEREAS, residents will not begin to recover from this emergency until actual damage
to property caused by frozen domestic water systems and failed heating systems is determined
after power is restored to residences with long-term outages; and

14



Çc

WHEREAS, the emergency has caused the need to open warming centers and ready
overnight shelters for those individuals without power, heat and water; and

WHEREAS, the disaster/emergency set forth above continues to threaten the safety,
security and livelihood of the Fairbanks North Star Borough residents; and,

WHEREAS, the severity and magnitude of the emergency is beyond the timely and
effective response capability of individualand local resources,

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that the Mayor of'the Fairbanks North Star tsorough
does declare a Disaster Emergency as per AS 26.23.140 to exist within the Fairbanks North Star
Borough; and,

BE IT F'URTHER RESOLVED THAT, in accordance with FNSB Code 2.28.041, orders
and/or regulations may be issued as necessary to deal with this Disaster Emergency.

FURTHERMORE, it is requested that the Governor of the State of Alaska declare a
Disaster Emergency to exist as described in AS 26.23 and provide State assistance to the
Fairbanks North Star Borough in its response and recovery from this event.

PROCLAIMED AND DECLARED this day of

\".'li

airbanks North Star Borough

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

',xl
'

Nanci A
Municipal

2073 Freezing Rain Disaster Declaration

Page2

ry€

€q;'ïËKIr:

15



FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE: November 2O,2OL3 10:004M
From: Billie Tewalt, Executive Communications Specialist, FNSB

Email : Btewalt@fnsb.us
(e07)4s9-1.304

Process for Reportinq Damaqe From Winter Storm

The Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB), the City of Fairbanks, and the City of Notlh Pole are
preparing to collect information from residents about damages their property received as a result of
the November 12,2013 severe winter wind storm that left thousands of people without electricity.

FNSB Mayor Luke Hopkins said, "ìlls Çe¡rnunity Leaders are taking this preliminary step now
because our community may be eligible for state or federal funding."

The Borough has created a webpage to gather information from area residents. The data will be
used to assess the damage caused by the storm. The Mayor reiterated that filling out the form is not
an application for assistance. "The information is going to provide us Community Leaders and
Emergency Managers with a better understanding of the affected areas," he said. The local
governments will need to develop an estimate of the total uninsured damages in the community.

Once the information has been collected it will be sent to the State of Alaska Division of Homeland
Security and Emergency Management. lf the Borough and cities of Fairbanks and North Pole are
eligible for assistance, residents will be required to apply directly to the State for the assistance at
that time. Further information will be provided as it becomes available.

The link to the survey can be found at:www.fnsb.us/oda Additional information is included in the
attached flier.

lnternet access is available at the NoelWien Library. NoelWien Library hours are Monday-
Thursday 1OAM-9PM, Friday, 10AM-6PM, Saturday 1OAM-5PM and Sunday 1PM-SPM. The Noel
Wien Library is located at the corner of Airport Way and Cowles Street.

For more information, or to telephonically report damage please contact the FNSB Emergency
Operations Department at 907-459-1453 during normal business hours.

lf residents within the City of Fairbanks have questions they can also contact the Ernie Misewicz with
the Fairbanks Fire Department at (907) 450-6615

16



OFFICIAL NOTICE to REPORT

TO YOUR PR]VATE RESIDENCE OR BUSINESS

WHO SHOULD REPORT? Anyone who has had damage to their property in the
Fairbanks North Star Borough, City of Fairbanks, and City of North Pole as a result
of the Novembe¡ 12,2013 severe winter storm - like a home, business, or
personal belongings - should report it now.
**THIS IS AN IMPORTANT l ST STEP IN RECOVERY

VIrHY? Our cornmunity tl/lAY be eligiHe for sbte or federal assllance trr co/er sorne of
your uninsured bsses and temporary housing costs. Developing an estimate of total
uninsured damage in the communiÇ is a critical part of getting the help you and
your neighbors need.

HOW TO REPORT? Contact the Fairbanks North Star Borough Division of
Emergency Management. After you report, tell your friends so they can report also.
Use any of the contact methods shown below

WHEN? We need your preliminary information as soon as possible.

WHAT HAPPENS THEN? We will compile that information and send it to the
State of Alaska Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management.
The SOA DHS/EM will use this information to determine if individualassistance
programs will be available as result of the November 12,2013 severe winter
storm. lf the state makes assistance available you will be required to apply for
assistance directly to the state at that time.

WHAT SHOULD YOU DO lN THE MEANTIME? Clean up, make necessary
repairs - but carefully document your damages (take pictures/video if you can) and
save all estimates and receipts.

http ://www.fnsb. u s/pda

cALL: 907459'1453

FAX FORM TO: 90745 '1119

17



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Public Hearing #1 or 3:  November   4, 2013 

Public Hearing #2 of 3:  November 25, 2013 

 Public Hearing #3 of 3:   December   2, 2013                              
 

 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 

ORDINANCE 13-14 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE NORTH POLE CITY COUNCIL 

ESTABLISHING THE 2014 BUDGET AND LEVYING THE MIL RATE 
 

Section 1.  Classification.  This ordinance is of a special nature and shall not be included in 

the North Pole Code of Ordinances. 

 

Section 2.  General Fund Operating Budget.  The anticipated general fund revenues of 

$5,349,809  are hereby appropriated to fund January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 operations 

as follows: 

 

Administration 581,551 

Professional Services 383,624 

Police Department 1,776,215 

Fire Department 1,951,358 

Public Works 657,061 

Total 5,349,809 

 

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective on January 1, 2014. 

 

Section 4.   Utility Fund Operating Budget.  The anticipated utility fund revenues of 

$1,517,619  are hereby appropriated to fund January 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014 operations 

as follows: 

 

Utility Department Water 

Operating Budget 

 

755,679 

Utility Department Sewer 

Operating Budget 

761,940 

Total 1,517,619 

 

 

Section 5.  Water Reserves Fund.  This fund accounts for the revenues that are received 

from the FRR and Water Base portions of the water bills and expenses related to capital 

projects for water. 

 

Transfer from Water Dept (FRR) 81,120 

Transfer from Water Dept 

(Water Base) 

106,128 

Total 187,248 

 

 

 

18

clerk
Sticky Note
The actual budget will be set separately due to the size of the document.  



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Public Hearing #1 or 3:  November   4, 2013 

Public Hearing #2 of 3:  November 25, 2013 

 Public Hearing #3 of 3:   December   2, 2013                              

 

 

 

Section 6.  Sewer Reserves Fund.  This fund accounts for the revenues that are received 

from the FRR and Water Base portions of the sewer bills and expenses related to capital 

projects for sewer. 

 

Transfer from Sewer Dept (FRR) 63,511 

Transfer from Sewer Dept  

(FRR-Industrial) 

63,511 

Transfer from Sewer Dept 

(Sewer Base) 

72,000 

Total 199,022 

 

Section 7.  Building Fund Operating Budget.  The anticipated building fund revenues of 

$76,085 are hereby appropriated to fund January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 operations as 

follows: 

Building Fund-Revenue 114,500 

Building Fund-Expenditures 114,500 

 

Section 8.  Special Revenues.  Special Revenue Fund Accounts exist for Abade, AHSO 

Traffic Officer, Byrne JAG Officer, Vehicle Fleet Funds, and State Forfeiture. These accounts 

are similar in nature to the capital fund, revenues and expenditures may carry over from one 

fiscal year to the next.  

 

   

Section 9.  Mill Rate.  The assessed valuation of all taxable property in the City of North 

Pole has been estimated at $368,185,060 for 2013.  The rate of levy on each dollar of taxable 

property is hereby fixed at 3.50 mills for municipal purposes.  The tax levies are due, 

delinquent, and subject to penalties prescribed by law and by the Fairbanks North Star 

Borough. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council 

this 2
nd

 day of December, 2013. 

 

 

______________________________ 

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

__________________________________ 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC 

North Pole City Clerk 
 

 

19



20



21



22



23



 
 

 
 

, 

 

 
 
 
 

FA I R B A N K S 
CONV ENTION & V ISITORS  BUREAU 

 
 

November  12, 2013 

 
City of North Pole 

125 Snowman Lane 

North Pole AK 99705 

 
 
 

101 Dunkel Street, Su ite  111 • Fa irbanks, AK 9970 1-4806 
Phone: (907) 457-3282 ·Fax: (907) 459-3787 

www.exp lorefa irbanks.com 

 

Dear Mayor Ward and City Council Members : 

 
This letter is in regards to Fairbanks Convention and Visitors Bureau (FCVB) requesting the 4th 

quarter 2012, 1
51

 2nd and 3rd Quarter 20 13 allotment of the North Pole City bed tax .  The total 

request is for $2626.00.  Please find attached the Year-to-date Bed Tax Summary Report for the 

FNSB region as well as the North Pole specific data.   FNSB is still completing their year-end 

adjustments and figures are subject to change. 

 
In the attached binder you will find our Year-to-Date Financial Report through September 2013 

as well as the Year -to-Date Progress Report highlighting our various programs through 

September 2013. 

 
Thank you again for reinvesting bed tax dollars into destination marketing which has shown a 

proven ability to help generate revenue for your community members . If there are questions, 

please contact me at my direct line 459-3774 or at dmurphv(a),explorefairbanks.com. 
 

 
Sincerely, 

· Yrt tM-f lt,7 
Dawn Murphy 

Finance and Administrative Director 

Fairbanks Convention and Visitors Bureau 

24



Cumulative Monthly Bed Tax Comparative 2012/2013 

 

 
 
 

1,000,000 
 
 
 

800,000 
 
 
 

600,000 
 
 
 

400,000 
 
 
 

200,000 
 
 
 

0 

 

January February March Apri l May June July August 
Septembe 

r 
 

 ......2012 146,465 158,236 219,835 227,853 311,885 612,493 714,332 994,490 582,665 

-2013 138,558 197,372 231,066 239,004 280,731 598,471 792,851 802,810 453,886 

 

 

·- 
Bed Tax Year To Date Dollar Change through September 2013 

Government Bed Tax 
Collections 

:r II )f- . 

Month Year-to-Date (YTD) 
 

 
 

Month 2012 

 

 
 

Month 2013 

 

Month Net 

Gain/Loss 

 
Month % 

+/- 

 

 
 

YTD 2012 

 

 
 

YTD 2013 

 

YTD Net 

Gain/Loss 

 
Year % 

+/- 
*FNSB (other than cities) 348,268 197,168 -151 ,101 -43.39% 1,660,088 1,384,189 -275,899 -16.62% 
City of Fairbanks 226,039 252,943 26,904 11.90% 2,235,572 2,306,655 71,083 3.2% 
City North Pole 8 ,358 3,776 -4,583 -54.83% 66,903 43 ,905 -22,998 -34.4% 

Totals 582,665 453,886   3,962,564 3,734,749   
I \, Month Net Gain/Loss -128 ,779.29 -22.10% YTD Net Gain/Loss -227,815 -5.75% 

 

*FNSB figures subject to change due to fiscal year-end adjustments 
 
 

 
1,200,000 

 
 
 

 

25



JAN  1,970.59 1,313.34 
-33.35% 

1,566.91 
19.31% 

3,873.71 
147.22% 

       

FEB  1,263.64 2,291.49 
81.34% 

2,279.70 
-0.51% 

1,556.06 
-31.74% 

       

MAR  2,998.96 2,927.86 
-2.37% 

2,096.83 
-28.38% 

1,531.38 
-26.97% 

       

APR  2,870.45 4,762.92 
65.93% 

2,797.83 
-41.26% 

1,188.13 
-57.53% 

       

MAY  11,754.14 7,446.07 
-36.65% 

8,619.01 
15.75% 

3,733.12 
-56.69% 

       

 

JUN 7,566.02 17,553.31 11,802.77 
-32.76% 

16,056.34 
36.04% 

7,222.81 
-55.02% 

       

JUL 11,036.93 12,369.02 
12.07% 

17,684.72 
42.98% 

14,518.28 
-17.90% 

8,827.79 
-39.20% 

       

 

AUG 6,487.05 15,567.30 
139.98% 

19,220.83 
23.47% 

16,300.60 
-15.19% 

12,196.38 
-25.18% 

       

SEP 6,649.40 7,386.97 
11.09% 

7,795.32 
5.53% 

8,358.29 
7.22% 

3,775.57 
-54.83% 

       

OCT 4,478.60 7,050.50 
57.43% 

4,886.37 
-30.69% 

8,446.94 
72.87% 

        

 

NOV 2,517.26 2,266.56 
-9.96% 

1,970.34 
-13.07% 

2,769.59 
40.56% 

        

 

DEC 1,941.41 886.35 
-54.35% 

1,070.68 
20.80% 

2,083.75 
94.62% 

        

  
40,676.67 83,937.79 83,172.71 85,894.07 43,904.95 0 00 0 00 0 00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

NORTH POLE CITY HOTEL/MOTEL BED TAX COLLECTION 
 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

I 
 

Annual % of Change 
 
 

106.35% -0.91% 3.27% 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11/12/2013 m /Statistics/Bed Tax/Bed Tax Stats xis 

26



CITY OF NORTH POLE

BED TAX - Ordinance 09-14

GL Acct:  01 00 00 5817

Quarterly Disbursements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013

0.15 0.85 0.85  

Month Retention Distribution

January -              

February 3,873.71     

March 1,531.38     

  Total 1st Quarter 5,405.09     810.76         4,594.33          

April 4,833.74     

May 1,188.13     

June 3,733.12     

  Total 2nd Quarter 9,754.99     1,463.25      8,291.74          

July 7,197.62     

August 8,816.51     
September 12,196.38  

  Total 3rd Quarter 28,210.51  4,231.58      23,978.93        
    Less: Overpay on 1st Q)

October 3,775.57     

November

December

YE Accrual

   Total 4th Quarter 3,775.57     566.34         3,209.23          

TOTALS 47,146.16  47,146.16  7,071.92      40,074.24        

40,074.24                       

 

Year End Accrual

Amount

27



Amts are booked in the month they are received.  At year, end

the taxes received in January are accrued back to December,

in accordance with GAAP.

 

01 02 00 7204 01 02 00 7201 01 02 00 7203 01 02 00 7205

NP Economic NP Christmas 

Development Chamber In Ice FCVB

50% 30% 15% 5% Total

2,297.16                          1,378.30             689.15                229.72                4,594.33     

4,145.87                          2,487.52             1,243.76             414.59                8,291.74     

11,989.47                        7,193.68             3,596.84             1,198.95             23,978.93  

1,604.62                          962.77                481.39                160.46                3,209.23     

20,037.12                        12,022.27           6,011.14             2,003.71             40,074.24  

40,074.24              

-                                        -                       -                       -                       

AMOUNTS APPLICABLE TO EACH ORGANIZATION

28



Memo 
To: Bryce Ward, Mayor 

From: Bill Butler 

Date: November 19, 2013 

Subject: Professional services agreement amendment 

Attached is an amendment to the professional services agreement with PDC Engineers for the sewer 

lining and manhole rehabilitation project. The professional services agreement included two sections. 

The first section was based upon an agreed upon lump sum fee of $164,208 for the development of 

design and bid documents. The second section of the agreement was based upon time and materials 

estimate hours of services and associated costs to provide bidding services and construction 

management services. The original estimated time and materials cost was $90,925. The project 

required more field oversight and inspections than originally anticipated. This was in part due to the 

uncertainty of the condition of the buried infrastructure and the number of digs, pipe repairs and 

manhole repairs that the project required.  

 

The professional services amendment is for an increase of $52,416. I requested additional information 

from PDC to clarify the requested increase related to documenting the wage rates. The wage rates 

used for the calculation of the amendment and all previous engineering billings were lower than the 

rates included in the original professional services agreement. The use of lower wage rates resulted in 

more services provided to the Utility than if PDC had applied the wage rates in the professional 

services agreement. 

 

There are funds within the budget to fund the increase cost. Recently submitted Change Order #3 

reduced the construction cost by $152,470. The final project cost (engineering, with the professional 

services amendment and construction) is estimated at $2,267,454. The grant and loan funds available 

to finance the project total $3,931,500 leaving a balance of $1,664,046. 

125 Snowman Lane 

North Pole, Alaska 99705 

(907) 488-8593 

(907) 488-3002 (fax) 

bill@northpolealaska.com 

City of North Pole 
Director of City Services 

29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



Sponsored by:  Council Member Hunter 

Co-sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced:  November 25, 2013 

Possible Adoption:  December 2, 2013 

   1 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 2 
 3 

ORDINANCE 13-15 4 

 5 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 4, CHAPTER 4.09,  6 

SECTION 4.09.020, Tax Levy 7 

  8 
WHEREAS, changes to the North Pole Municipal Code is a continually changing requirement; 9 
and 10 
 11 
WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 12 

requirements of the City; and  13 
 14 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole wishes to promote and encourage economic and tourism 15 
development within the City of North Pole, and  16 

 17 
WHEREAS, the initial discretionary grants will be due no later than October 31, 2014. 18 

 19 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of North Pole: 20 
 21 

 Section 1.  This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 22 
 23 

 Section 2.  Title 4, Chapter 4.09 is amended in the North Pole Code of ordinances as 24 
 follows: 25 

4.09.020 Tax levy. 26 

A.    There is hereby levied a tax on the use and privilege of renting a room within the City equal 27 
to eight percent of the daily rent charged for each room rented for each twenty-four-hour period, 28 
or any portion of that period. This tax is imposed upon all room rentals unless the rental is 29 

specifically exempted herein or by other applicable law. The tax is not imposed upon a 30 
permanent resident of a room. 31 

B.    It is the purpose and intent of the tax levied under this chapter to raise revenues. To that end, 32 
the scope of the tax levied shall be broadly interpreted and exemptions shall be allowed only 33 
when the room rental clearly falls within an exemption defined in this chapter. The burden of 34 

proving an exemption is on the person claiming the exemption. 35 

C.    The tax levied under this chapter is to raise revenues primarily for the purpose of funding 36 
services for the promotion of economic development, including the tourist industry, and for the 37 

funding of services for the general public. There will be an administration fee of fifteen percent 38 
of the total bed tax collected by the City per quarter. Distribution of bed tax revenues shall be at 39 
the discretion of the City Council, which shall consider distribution percentages of the remaining 40 

revenues as follows: 41 

48



Sponsored by:  Council Member Hunter 

Co-sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced:  November 25, 2013 

Possible Adoption:  December 2, 2013 

1.    North Pole Economic Development Corporation: fifty percent. 42 

2.    North Pole Community Chamber of Commerce Visitor Information Center: thirty percent. 43 

3.    North Pole Christmas in Ice: fifteen percent. 44 

4.    FCVB: five percent. 45 

5.    Remaining undesignated bed tax revenues shall be allocated at the discretion of the City 46 
Council. 47 

6.    Funds will be disbursed on a quarterly basis after a formal request is approved by Council. 48 
Each request must be accompanied by financial statements and a written narrative of how monies 49 

were used for prior quarter period of which funds are requested. In addition, a report of how 50 
monies are expected to be used shall be provided. 51 

All entities receiving bed tax revenues shall provide annual reports to the City Council and YTD 52 
reports and proposed annual budgets to the City Council prior to the adoption of the City budget. 53 

C.  The tax on the daily rental of hotel and motel rooms levied by this article is for the primary 54 
purpose of funding services for the promotion of the tourist industry and other economic 55 
development, and for the funding of services for the general public.  56 

D.  Any organization, public or private, or any person may submit an economic and tourism 57 
development discretionary grant application and proposal to the city council no later than 58 

October 31st for distribution in the next calendar year. The city council shall establish standards 59 
and criteria for selection and publish them for a reasonable period before the applications are to 60 
be submitted. A committee shall be appointed by the mayor with city council concurrence to 61 
review the proposals and make recommendations to the city council no later than the first 62 
regular meeting in January.  63 

E.  Subject to annual appropriation, revenues collected under this article shall be allocated as 64 
follows: 65 

(1) $15,000 will be distributed annually through economic and tourism development 66 
discretionary grants: 67 

(2) The City of North Pole will receive the remaining bed taxes for fund collection, 68 

administration and tourism impact.  69 

 70 

F.   Any recipient of funding under this article shall execute a contract with the city setting forth 71 

terms and conditions deemed necessary to enable the city to assure compliance with the 72 
purposes and limitations under this section.  73 

49



Sponsored by:  Council Member Hunter 

Co-sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced:  November 25, 2013 

Possible Adoption:  December 2, 2013 

G.   Organizations and agencies will be required to report to the City of North Pole Chief 74 
Financial Officer that funds were used exclusively for the purposes stated in the grant 75 
application. Ten percent of these appropriations will be withheld until the complete report is 76 
filed with the Chief Financial Officer. Prior to receiving any funding under this section, 77 
applicants must agree to reimburse the city the full amount of any grant proceeds not used for 78 
the purposes stated on the application.  79 

Certification that funds were used as approved is due by October 31st  of the year of grant 80 
funding; funds not spent or encumbered for approved purposes must be returned by that date. An 81 
organization that fails to comply with the October 31

st
  deadline is ineligible to seek funding for 82 

the following year, but if complete reporting and repayment is made by October 31
st
  of the 83 

following year, the organization may reapply for future funding. An organization that does not 84 
comply within one year of the deadline is ineligible to receive funding for three additional years.  85 

H.  The city council establishes the following criteria and process for the selection and 86 
application for discretionary funds. 87 

(1)  The City of North Pole stipulates that applicants must provide and indicate to the 88 
committee on the appropriate forms supplied by the City of North Pole the following 89 
information:  90 

a.  If an applicant has the disbursement responsibility for other organizations, they must list all 91 
organizations that they represent. 92 

b.  The applicant must complete the application in its entirety and may submit financial 93 

information in their format including: 94 

1.  Balance sheet for the last fiscal year; 95 

2.  Income and expense statement for the last fiscal year; 96 

3.  Applicant's projected budget for the upcoming year; 97 

4.  Wage and salary information for employees for current and upcoming year; 98 

c.  An applicant must answer questions in the order provided but need not have the questions and 99 
answers appear on specific pages. 100 

(2)  As per subsection 04.09.020 (G), successful applicant is required to report to the City of 101 
North Pole Chief Financial Officer how bed tax funds were spent. Ten percent of these 102 

appropriations will be withheld until a report is filed with the chief financial officer.  103 

(3)  The City of North Pole Discretionary Fund's primary purpose is promotion of the tourist 104 

industry and other economic development in the City of Fairbanks. The fund cannot support 105 
requests for the following:  106 

50



Sponsored by:  Council Member Hunter 

Co-sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced:  November 25, 2013 

Possible Adoption:  December 2, 2013 

a.  Loans, deficits, or debt reduction. 107 

b.  Endowments. 108 

c.  Scholarships. 109 

d.  Health and social services activities. 110 

(4)Grant guidelines: 111 

a. Show how use of the funds will contribute significantly to the growth and promotion of  112 
North Pole. 113 

b. Show how the grant monies will be used to supplement a successful ongoing program 114 
of activities or a new program that will need initial support to accomplish its stated 115 
goals.  116 

(5)  Grant applications must be picked up or requested to be sent by mail from the office of the 117 
city clerk and must be submitted by and postmarked no later than October 31 of each year.  118 

(6)  The discretionary fund committee shall be composed of four community members and a 119 
council person who will function as the chairman, five total, all appointed by the mayor and 120 
approved by council.  121 

(7)  The members of the committee shall serve a two-year term with staggered appointment with 122 

a limit of two consecutive full terms, (i.e., two members for a two-year term, two members for a 123 
one-year term. Initially this will be decided by the committee at its first meeting by drawing lots.) 124 
Unless appointed to fill a vacancy, terms begin July 1 and terms expire June 30.  125 

(8)  Citizens desiring to be members of the committee must apply to the office of the mayor on the 126 
date specified by the mayor and city council for appointment to the committee.  127 

a.  Procedures for scoring proposals from applicants shall be decided by the committee 128 

as a whole during the first organizational meeting. Members at this meeting should be 129 
made aware of procedures in place in case of conflicts of interest.  130 

b.  Members shall have a distribution meeting to review and discuss their numerical 131 

valuations and weightings assigned to each grant application. Prior to the distribution 132 

meeting committee members must submit their numerical assessments to the chief 133 
financial officer to verify that they are true and correct on the Monday of the week when 134 
the distribution will become public. Members shall disclose their numerical valuations by 135 
reading them into the record during the distribution meeting.  136 

 137 

51



Sponsored by:  Council Member Hunter 

Co-sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced:  November 25, 2013 

Possible Adoption:  December 2, 2013 

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective at 5:00 p.m. on the first City 138 
business day following its adoption. 139 

 140 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 2

nd
  day of December, 2013 by a duly constituted quorum of 141 

the North Pole City Council. 142 

 143 
 144 
      __________________________________ 145 
      Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 146 
 147 

 148 
ATTEST: 149 
 150 

 151 
 152 
__________________________________ 153 

Kathryn M Weber, MMC 154 
North Pole City Clerk 155 

 156 
 157 
 158 

 159 
PASSED/FAILED 160 

YES: 161 
NO: 162 

ABSENT: 163 

52



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced:  November 25, 2013 

Possible Adoption:  December 2, 2013 

1 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 
 

ORDINANCE 13-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE, ALASKA TO 

AMEND TITLE 13, PUBLIC SERVICES 
 
WHEREAS, changes to the public services practices and policies is a continually changing 

requirement; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of North Pole Municipal Code should be amended to conform to the 

requirements of the City. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of North Pole: 

 

Section 1. This ordinance is of a general and permanent nature and shall be codified. 

 

Section 2. Title 13 is amended in the North Pole Code of Ordinances as follows in the attached 

table: 

 

Section 3. Effective date. 

This ordinance shall become effective January 1, 2014. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 

2
nd

 of December, 2013. 

 

 

 

_____________________________ 

 Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Kathryn M Weber, MMC 

North Pole City Clerk 

 

 

PASSED/FAILED 

Yes: 

No: 

Absent: 

 

 

 

 

 

53



Sponsored by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Advanced:  November 25, 2013 

Possible Adoption:  December 2, 2013 

2 

 

Title 13 

 

PUBLIC SERVICES 
 

Chapters: 13.24 Utility Rates 

 

13.24.020 Metered Water and Sewer Utility Rates 

 

Monthly water and sewer utility rates beginning January 1, 2013 2014 shall be the following: 

 

Customer class 

Per 

gallon 

water 

Monthly 

base 

water 

charge 

Per 

gallon 

sewer 

charge
1
 

Monthly 

base 

sewer 

charge 

FRR
2
-

Water 

per 

gallon 

charge 

FRR
2
-

Sewer 

per 

gallon 

charge 

FRR
2 

Significant 

industrial 

discharger, 

sewer 

Single-family 

residential 

$0.01705 $5 $0.01141 $5 $0.0015 

$0.0025 

$0.0015 

$0.0025 

-- 

Senior single-family 

residential 

$0.008525 $5 $0.00571 $5 $0.0015 

$0.0025 

$0.0015 

$0.0025 

-- 

Multifamily residential $0.01705 $25 $0.01141 $25 $0.0015 

$0.0025 

$0.0015 

$0.0025 

-- 

Senior multi-family 

residential 

$0.01705 $25 $0.01141 $25 $0.0015 

$0.0025 

$0.0015 

$0.0025 

-- 

Commercial $0.01705 $25 $0.01141 $25 $0.0015 

$0.0025 

$0.0015 

$0.0025 

-- 

Commercial/significant 

industrial discharger 

$0.01705 $25 $0.01141 $25 -- -- $0.003911 

 

1. The monthly sewer charge for the months of May, June, July and August will be capped at an 

amount not to exceed the average of the water usage during the months September through April 

for Single family and Senior single-family residential customers only. 

2. Facility Repair and Replacement: Funds generated to repair and replace utility capital 

infrastructure. 

54



Sponsored by: Mayor Bryce J. Ward 

Introduced and Adopted: November 25, 2013 

CITY OF NORTH POLE 

RESOLUTION 13-18 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF NORTH POLE TO FORMALLY ACCEPT 

ALASKA CLEAN WATER FUND LOAN #633031 FROM THE ALASKA 

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL CONSERVATION IN THE AMOUNT OF 

$302,500 FOR THE UTILITY EMERGENCY RESPONSE GENERATORS PROJECT 

WHEREAS, the North Pole City Council approved placing on the October 2, 2012 ballot the 

Utility Emergency Response Generator project funded with an Alaska Clean Water Fund 

(ACWF) loan; and 

WHEREAS, the voters in the City cast ballots on October 2, 2012 with 272 in favor of 

accepting the debt associated with the loan and 49 voted not to accept the debt associated with 

the Utility Emergency Response Generator project funded with an ACWF loan; and 

WHEREAS, the City agrees it shall construct, operate and maintain the Utility Emergency 

Response Generator project funded with ACWF #633031.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the North Pole City Council of the City of 

North Pole that the City accepts Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation ACWF# 

633031 for $302,500 for the Utility Emergency Response Generator project and accepts the 

conditions of the grant agreement that include a maximum term of 20 years with a finance charge 

of 1.5 percent per annum. The full conditions of the loan are attached to this resolution. 

PASSED AND APPROVED BY  by a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City 
Council on this 25

th
 day of November, 2013. 

Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

Kathryn M. Weber, MMC

North Pole City Clerk 

55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



Submitted by:  Mayor Ward 

Introduced & Adopted:  November 25, 2013 

RESOLUTION 13-19 

 

A RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF THE FAIRBANKS 

METROPOLITAN AREA TRANSPORTATION SYSTEM  

(FMATS) REQUEST FOR TRANSPORTATION FUNDING  

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015 

 

WHEREAS, FMATS is the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Fairbanks 

Urbanized area and therefore receives federal highway funds for transportation planning and 

projects that improve the infrastructure for city residents; and 

 

WHEREAS, FMATS’ federal transportation funds decreased by 30% in Federal Fiscal Year 

2013; and 

 

WHEREAS, FMATS will be unable to continue to improve the safety of its roads, prepare for 

economic opportunities and preserve the existing road system without state support; and 

 

WHEREAS, FMATS has many projects in the cue that are short-funded due to the decrease in 

federal transportation funding to MPOs;  

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of North Pole supports 

FMATS in their request for $16 million from the State of Alaska for the development of projects 

in the approved Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that copies of this resolution shall be sent to the Honorable 

Governor Sean Parnell and the Interior Delegation.  

 

PASSED BY a duly constituted quorum of the North Pole City Council this 25
th

 day of 

November, 2013. 

 

 

 

 ________________________________________ 

  Bryce J. Ward, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

________________________________ 

Kathryn M Weber, MMC 

North Pole City Clerk 

 


	AG-11-25-13
	Min-11-04-13
	Proclamation & Disaster Info
	Ord 13-14 2014 Budget Ordinance Page
	Award RFP for 2013 CNP Audit to Kohler, Schmitt & Hutchinson
	CII 3rd qtr 2013 bed tax request
	FCVB Bed Tax Request
	Bed Tax Worksheet
	Request from PDC Engineering for Modification of  Professional Services Agreement
	Exhibit K - Amendment to Agreement

	Mutual Aid Agreement for Fire Protetion Services
	EMS Mutual Aid Agrremnt -FNSB & its EMS Contractors & Adjacent entities
	Ord 13-15 Amend Bed Tax Ordinance
	Ord 13-16 2014 Utility Rate Increase
	Res 13-18 Emergency Generator loan resolution
	ACWF Agreement

	Res 13-19 Support of FMATS Funding for FY2015



